Denton Planning Commission
Minutes
Town of Denton
September 30, 2025
Planning Commission Members:

William Quick, Chairperson**

David Burroughs, Vice Chairperson*

Kevin Waterman*

Dona Sorce*

James Guay, Alternate™***

* Those Present

** Excused

**% - Absent
Participants:
Peter Johnston, Town Planner Frank Taylor, Councilman
George Bailey Greg Glaser
Jake Jarboe Lori Moore
Melissa Lavelle Wendy Melvin
Georgia Orr
Recording:

Donna Todd, Director of Planning and Codes
Scott Getchell, Town Administrator

George Bacorn, Chief of Police

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 1 of 8



PROCEEDINGS

Call to Order:

The Planning Commission Meeting was called to order by Vice Chairperson Burroughs at
6:00 pm, on September 30, 2025, at the Denton Town Office. Vice Chairperson Burroughs led everyone
in the Pledge of Allegiance.

This Meeting was made available to the public via Zoom Video Conferencing, and access to the
meeting was provided on the Town's website.

Approval of Minutes:

The Regular Meeting Minutes for August 26, 2025, were reviewed and unanimously approved.

Old Business #1 — Other: None.

New Business #1 — Denton Project I, LL.C — Text Amendment Request:

Denton Project I, LLC, submitted a zoning text amendment application requesting an amendment
to Denton Town Code Chapter 128-127, specifically the Table of Density, regarding the minimum lot area
and dimensions. A proposed text amendment was discussed at the August 26, 2025, meeting of the
Planning Commission. This amendment will remove the 100-foot lot depth requirement for townhouses.
The proposed text amendment was discussed at the Town Council Working Session on September 15,
2025. The Town Council supported a text amendment removing the lot depth requirement for townhouses.
Ordinance No. 760 is scheduled for introduction by the Town Council on October 2, 2025. If introduced,
the Public Hearing and adoption of the ordinance will be scheduled for November 6, 2025.

Commissioner Waterman motioned to recommend the proposed text amendment request to the
Town Council.

Commissioner Sorce seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. (3:0)

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 2 of 8



New Business #2 — Korat, LLLC — Tractor Supply Co. — Minor Subdivision:

Greg Glaser, GBT Realty Corporation (Applicant), submitted a minor subdivision plan application
to create two commercial lots located at 325 Fleetwood Road, Tax Map 100/Parcel 1147, Lot 4, and a lot
line revision for Tax Map 100/Parcel 1147, Lot 4, and Tax Map 100/Parcel 1147-5, Lot 3B, zoned
Regional Highway Commercial (RHC). The property is owned by
Korat, LLC.

Jake Jarboe of Dynamic Engineering provided additional information for the minor subdivision
and lot line revision. The total acreage of the property is 14.6 acres. The request proposes the creation of
a 4.6-acre subdivision adjacent to the hotel. The newly designated lot, 4B, is intended for future
commercial development.

Peter Johnston, Town Planner, noted that the applicant will need to provide a plat that includes the
owners and zoning for all adjacent parcels.

Commissioner Waterman motioned to approve the minor subdivision and lot line revision.

Commissioner Sorce seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. (3:0)

New Business #3 — Korat, LLLC — Tractor Supply Co. — Preliminary Site Plan:

Greg Glaser, GBT Realty Corporation, (Applicant) submitted a preliminary site plan to construct
a 21,930 square foot retail store, to include outdoor display areas, a loading zone, and parking facilities,
to be located at 325 Fleetwood Road, Tax Map 0100/Parcel 1147, Lot 4B.

Jake Jarboe, representing Dynamic Engineering, presented the proposal for a Tractor Supply store.
He informed the Planning Commission that most of the traffic will originate from the Best Western side
of the project. Mr. Jarboe explained that the transmission lines along Route 404 have a one-hundred-and-
fifty-foot easement, which would position any future development closer to Fleetwood Road. The parking

lot and buffer would be situated along Route 404, and enhanced landscaping would be implemented.

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 3 of 8



Mr. Jarboe pointed out that the parking requirement is ninety-eight spaces. After conducting
research and considering that this project is more akin to a hardware store, they believe that the proposed
seventy-five parking spaces are sufficient and more than satisfactory.

Lori Moore, Resident of 428 Fleetwood Road, expressed her willingness to accommodate a Tractor
Supply store but raised concerns about the proposed project's location. She highlighted that Fleetwood
Road lacks an outlet, which she believes would pose challenges for the residents. Additionally, Ms. Moore
inquired about potential traffic congestion and the availability of an entrance from Route 404 to the site.

Mr. Jarboe explained that access to the project will be from Fleetwood Road, which is zoned RHC
(Regional Highway Commercial). Additionally, there will be some access from the Best Western location.
He emphasized that a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) has been conducted for the project, and it will not
significantly increase traffic volume. Furthermore, no negative effects were identified at the intersection
of Sixth Street and Fleetwood Road, and there will be no new entrance from Route 404.

Ms. Moore shared safety concerns about proposed traffic on Fleetwood Road, citing the presence
of children who play on the road and use the bus stop.

Melissa Lavelle, representing the owner and manager of Riverwoods of Denton apartments,
expressed her concerns regarding traffic congestion and the lack of an outlet on Fleetwood Road. The
residents have proposed constructing a second road to alleviate traffic congestion. While Ms. Lavelle is
not opposed to the proposed Tractor Supply store, she acknowledges its potential location. She expresses
concern about the potential impact on traffic on the secondary road off Fleetwood Road.

Vice Chairperson Burroughs asked if the parking was specific to Tractor Supply stores.

Mr. Jarboe stated that the IT data is based on the International Traffic Code. They suggest seventy-
five parking spaces due to the less intense use of parking.

Vice Chairperson Burroughs questioned the frequency of tractor-trailer use.

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 4 of 8



Mr. Jarboe stated that the loading dock would be located at the rear of Tractor Supply and would
have access from both entrances.

Vice Chairperson Burroughs asked Mr. Johnston to clarify what is required in terms of
landscaping.

Mr. Johnston observed that the applicant submitted a site plan for the plants along Fleetwood Road,
utilizing the outdated bufferyards standards instead of the revised requirements for parking lots and
screening. He acknowledged that this alternative plan is reasonable, albeit with some concerns regarding
the interior landscaping in the parking lot. However, Mr. Johnston deemed these issues non-critical and
suggested that the applicant is prepared for preliminary site plan approval.

Vice Chairperson Burroughs questioned the number of trees. He states that twenty-one trees were
based on the zoning requirements for the total parking area and would be seeking relief on the amount.

Mr. Jarboe stated they have since changed it to a total of thirteen interior trees.

Commissioner Sorce questioned whether they had reviewed the comments regarding traffic and
speed on Fleetwood Road.

Mr. Jarboe acknowledged the concern regarding the location near a residential area and
acknowledged that Fleetwood Road has a secondary entrance. He emphasized that, from an operational
perspective, there are opportunities to enhance signage to ensure that customers primarily use the entrance
located at the front of Tractor Supply, through the shopping center.

Commissioner Sorce asked if they would use signage to direct traffic.

Mr. Jarboe expressed his belief that customers would prefer to utilize the shopping center's access
due to the proximity of the parking facilities. He also indicated that Tractor Supply does not intend to
install a panel sign along Fleetwood Road. However, the company will consider this matter further in light

of the concerns that have been raised.

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 5 of 8



Ms. Lavelle raised concerns regarding the potential traffic congestion caused by tractor-trailer
deliveries. Neighboring businesses have shown difficulties in making turns due to the vehicle's size. There
have been instances where they have missed their intended destinations, leaving them without a suitable
place to turn.

The Property Manager, representing Riverwoods of Denton, has expressed concerns regarding the
safety of children playing on the road and the presence of a bus stop on Fleetwood Road. She has
highlighted the issue of speeding vehicles and suggests that the addition of more traffic would exacerbate
the problem.

Georga Orr, a resident of 309 Fleetwood Road, expressed her concerns regarding traffic congestion
and the existing challenges in transporting campers and boats on the narrow road. She also highlighted
the absence of tree maintenance along the road, which exacerbates the current conditions. Furthermore,
Orr noted that the frequent traffic generated by tractor-trailers entering and exiting the hotel has resulted
in several instances where these vehicles have made U-turns at the dead end near her residence, causing
damage to her mailbox.

Mr. Johnston asked Mr. Jarboe to show on the map the planned traffic flow.

Mr. Jarboe demonstrated how the traffic would flow, and Tractor Supply has an extra-wide 360°
lane that goes around the building to accommodate the tractor-trailers.

Mr. Johnston asked if there is an existing easement across Lot 3 B.

Mr. Jarboe stated that there was one dedicated to the construction of Tractor Supply, but it was not
in place as of now.

Mr. Johnston stated that any approval would have to be contingent on the easement through Lot

3B to accommodate the traffic flow to Tractor Supply.

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 6 of 8



Mr. Jarboe stated that it would be done; he also said they would be using a heavy-duty type of
asphalt to support the tractor-trailers.

Commissioner Sorce asked about the hours of operation.

Greg Glaser of GBT Realty Corporation stated that the hours would be 8:00 am to 9:00 pm, and
on Sundays, they would open a little earlier.

Commissioner Sorce asked if the deliveries would take place within those hours.

Mr. Glaser stated that all Tractor Supply establishments receive an average of one delivery per
week.

Commissioner Waterman asked who was responsible for Fleetwood Road.

Scott Getchell, Town Administrator, stated that it is a non-thru truck route.

Councilman Taylor asked if they needed the access from Fleetwood Road.

Mr. Jarboe stated that its intended use is also for emergency access.

Mr. Glaser noted that any major retailer would like as many entrance points as possible.

Wendy Melvin, a Resident of 302 Fleetwood Road, expressed her concerns about the current
traffic, noting that it worsens at 5:00 pm and during school dismissal with the buses. She suggested that a
traffic study be conducted at the location.

Mr. Johnston stated that a traffic impact study was completed and addresses all traffic-related
questions.

Ms. LaBelle questioned when the study was completed.

Mr. Johnston stated that the study was conducted during peak hours, and it was conducted in the
morning and afternoon on both weekdays and weekends.

Mr. Jarboe explained that what they are proposing is not your typical retail store and has fewer

daily users.

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 7 of 8



Other comments included the addition of an extra lane to accommodate tractor-trailers making
wide turns when exiting the road. They have also suggested that the road should be paved with heavy-
duty materials to prevent the current pavement from being damaged and creating potholes.

Commissioner Waterman motioned to approve the preliminary site plan, considering the residents'
concerns and providing parking relief in the form of seventy-five spaces, as requested. Approval is
contingent upon satisfying all comments by the Town Planner, Town Engineer, Town Staff, and all other
required approving agencies.

Commissioner Sorce seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. (3:0)

New Business #2 — Other: None.

Staff Item #1 — Other: Donna Todd, Planning and Codes Director, provided an update that
Atlantic Coastal Storage will be coming in next month for preliminary site plan approval, as well as the
Denton Project LLC with the single-family homes on Market Street in November.

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 6:52 pm.

Planning Commission Minutes
September 30, 2025
Page 8 of 8



